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Credit Suisse Management Cayman Limited

Director, Brian Burkholder
1104
309
P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104,

Cayman Islands

03 6775 1000

Credit Suisse Universal Trust Cayman - AUD Short Term Bond
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2021 12
2,322,516.82 21.4
2,292,822.10 21.1
1,903,225.23 17.5
1,519,850.16 14.0
808,804.09 7.4
402,003.53 3.7
1,153,632.78 10.6
465,403.75 4.3
10,868,258.46
100.0
( 907 )
2021 12
BANCO SANTANDER SA /AUD/
169 | 2023/1/19 | 8,000 [ 10044 | 803,499.49 | 1011 | 808,804.09 | 7.8%
REGD V/R REG S EMTN
HSBC HOLDINGS PLC /AUD/
114 | 202472716 | 8,000 [ 100.19 | 801521.73 | 100.67 | 805358.89 |  7.7%
REGD V/R REG S EMTN
BARCLAYS PLC /AUD/ REGD V/R
REG S 186 | 2023/6/15 | 7,500 | 100.97 | 757,275.48 | 101.82 | 76364597 |  7.3%
BANK OF MONTREAL /AUD/ REGD
103 | 2024/7/17 | 75500 | 101.71 | 762,819.84 | 10146 | 760980.38 | 7.3%
V/R MTN
LLOYDS BANKING GROUP PLC
365 | 2023/3/20 | 7,300 | 103.28 | 753939.18 | 103.22 | 75351196 | 7.2%
/AUD/ REGD MTN
MERCEDES-BENZ AUSTRALIA
163 | 2022/8/30 | 6,500 | 10048 | 653,107.23 | 100.66 | 654,285.14 |  6.3%
/AUD/ REGD EMTN
WELLS FARGO & COMPANY /AUD/
475 | 2024/8/27 | 6,000 [ 109.2 | 655187.29 | 107.87 | 647,197.36 | 6.2%
REGD MTN
CITIGROUP INC /AUD/ REGD
R 176 |2023/10/27 | 5930 [ 102 | 604,837.21 | 102.17 | 605845.06 | 5.8%
TORONTO-DOMINION BANK /AUD/
103 | 202477710 | 5000 [ 101.6 | 508,012.85 | 1014 | 507,00227 | A4.9%
REGD V/R
GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC
10 400 | 2024/5/2 | 4,000 [ 106.82 | 427283.00 | 10548 | 421919.38 | 4.1%
/AUD/ REGD REG S MTN
TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA
11 330 |2023/11/22 | 4,000 | 104.86 | 419421.22 | 10393 | 415723.34 | 4.0%
/AUD/ REGD
EMIRATES NBD BANK PJSC
12 475 | 2022/2/18 | 4,000 [ 100.36 | 401442.15 | 1005 | 402,00353 | 3.9%
/AUD/ REGD MTN
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GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC
13 161 | 2024/5/2 | 3500 | 102.46 | 358617.15 | 102.13 | 357,450.64 | 3.4%
/AUD/ REGD V/R REG S MTN
EUROPEAN INVESTMENT BANK
14 050 [ 2023/6/21 | 3300 | 100.12 | 33040829 | 99.64 | 32882066 | 3.2%
/AUD/ REGD EMTN
DEUTSCHE BANK AG SYDNEY
15 375 | 2023/1/30 | 3100 | 102.92 | 31906159 | 10269 | 31833156 | 3.1%
/AUD/ REGD EMTN
MIZUHO FINANCIAL GROUP
16 144 | 2023/7/19 | 3,000 | 101.07 | 30320599 | 101.31 | 30392059 [ 2.9%
/AUD/ REGD V/R
17 |CITIGROUP INC /AUD/ REGD 375 | 2023/10/27 | 2,500 | 10441 | 26103281 | 104.16 | 260,409.66 | 2.5%
CANADIAN IMPERIAL BANK
18 160 | 2023/6/9 | 2,500 | 101.26 | 253150.74 | 100.75 | 251,867.51 [ ~ 2.4%
/AUD/ REGD MTN
SUNCORP-METWAY LTD /AUD/
19 185 | 2024/7/30 | 2,500 | 102.37 | 25592098 | 100.66 | 25164553 [ 2.4%
REGD MTN
VOLKSWAGEN FIN SERV AUST
20 240 | 2024/8/28 | 2,000 | 103.62 | 20724204 | 10154 | 20307851 [  2.0%
/AUD/ REGD MTN
BNP PARIBAS /AUD/ REGD V/R
21| L 182 | 2022/12/16 | 2,000 | 100.76 | 201514.67 | 101.28 | 202559.97 [ 1.9%
MERCEDES-BENZ AUSTRALIA
22 100 | 2024/3/15 | 2,000 | 99.82 | 19964658 | 9887 | 197,73297 [ 1.9%
/AUD/ REGD REG S EMTN
VOLKSWAGEN FIN SERV AUST
23 330 [ 2022/2/28 | 1,800 | 100.31 | 180552.03 | 10042 | 180,759.74 | 1.7%
/AUD/ REGD REG S MTN
2021 12
2021 12
2021 2021 12
1 4.2 452,554 1.004 4
2021 0,650,354.28 888,452,55 0043 8
2021 8,523,657.37 711,043,498 1.0015 84
2021 9,906,629.76 826,411,055 1.0016 84
2021 11,471,316.69 956,937,238 1.0015 84
2021 11,614,445.72 968,877,062 1.0028 84
2021 11,569,796.21 965,152,400 1.0036 84
2021 10,362,886.62 864,472,002 1.0040 84
2021 10,605,145.59 884,681,245 1.0055 84
2021 10,650,354.28 888,452,554 1.0043 84
2021 10,837,337.30 904,050,678 1.0059 84
2021 10 10,835,776.50 903,920,476 1.0005 83
2021 11 10,864,612.95 906,326,012 1.0024 84
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2021 12 10,868,258.46 906,630,121 1.0027 84
2021 12
2020 24 2021
2020 24 2021 0.4
100x +
2021
2020
0.0
2020 24 2020 12
2021
2021 2021 12 0.3
100x +
2020
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2020 24 2021 2021
2020 24 13,241,074 2,636,036 10,605,038
2021 (13,241,074) (2,636,036) (10,605,038)
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2021 8 31
2021 8 31
AUD
- 2.2 10,098,648 842,429
2.1 408,623 34,087
107,531 8,970
2.11 53,148 4,434
2.5 40,401 3,370
2.10 6,172 515
10,714,523 893,806
2.1 44 4
7.1D 24,707 2,061
7.1A 7,267 606
7.1B 2,525 211
7.2B 2,166 181
7.1C 1,723 144
7.1E 1,574 131
7.2D 422 35
7.2E 181 15
7.2F 90 8
40,699 3,395

10,673,824 890,410
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2020 9 24
2021 8 31
2021 8 31
AUD
FVTPL @
2.11 68,872 5,745
3,296 275
2.11 6
40,772 3,401
2.11 6

2.11 6 25 2
112,965 9,424
59,323 4,949
7.1A 51,347 4,283
7.1D 24,706 2,061
23,514 1,962
7.18 12,627 1,053
7.28 10,754 897
7.1C 9,233 770
7.20 4,481 374
7.1E 4,481 374
7.2F 896 75
7.2E 896 75
202,258 16,872
2.5 (166,412) (13,882)
77,119 6,433
77,119 6,433

FVTPL
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2020 9 24
2021 8 31
AUD
2020 9 24 _ -
13,241,346 1,104,593
2.8 (2,644,641) (220,616)
77,119 6,433
2021 8 31 10,673,824 890,410
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2020 9 24
2021 8 31

2021 8 31

AUD
77,119 6,433
(15,816,002) (1,319,371)
5,569,511 464,609
(25) @
(3,296) (275)
(40,772) (3,401)
@7 @)
191,963 16,014
(53,148) (4,434)
(40,401) (3,370)
(107,531) (8,970)
40,655 3,391
(10,181,954) (849,379)
13,235,174 1,104,078
(2,644,641) (220, 616)
10,590,533 883,462
408,579 34,084
2.1 - -
2.1 408,579 34,084
15,725 1,312
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1.
2013 12 2
i
2020 8 28
2020 9 24 2025 8
29
100
2021 2014 1 22
2021
KY1-9005
1 One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands

2021 2 15

2021 2 3
2021 1 19
2021 1 18
2021 1 18
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IFRS 10  IFRS 12 IAS 27 2012
IFRS 9 3
FVTPL
FVOCI  IFRS 9
FVTPL
FVTPL
i
i SPPI
i SPPI
i
i)

FVTPL

SPPI
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ECL
- FVTPL
- 12
ECL
2020 9 24 2021 8 31
2020 9 24
2.1
3
2021 8 31
2021 8 31
$ 408,623
408,623
(44)
$ 408,579
2.2
A
FVTPL
2021 8 31 2021 8 31

$ 10,098,648 $ 10,057,876
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IAS 12
2021 8 31
3.
1
1 1 1
7
2021 8 31 1
1
$ 10,673,824 10,605,038 $ 1.0065
2021 8 31 5

61.90 17.91 13.63 5.41 1.15
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2021 8 31
1

2021 8 31
2020 9 24 2021 8 31
$ - $ 13,241,346 $ (2,644,641) $ 10,596,705

2021 8 31
2020 9 24 2021 8 31
- 13,241,074 (2,636,036) 10,605,038
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4.
5.
5.1
A
i
ii
2021 8 31 1 1 5 5

$ 2,507,717  $ 7,590,931 $ - $ - $ 10,098,648
408,623 - - - 408,623
- - - 107,531 107,531
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2021 8 31 1 1 5 5
- - - 53,148 53,148
- - - 40,401 40,401
- i, - 6,172 6,172

$ 2,916,340 $ 7,590,931 $

$ 207,252 $ 10,714,523
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2021 8 31 1 1 5 5
$ 44 % -3 - % - % 44
i i, - 24,707 24,707
i . - 7,267 7,267
- i, . 2,525 2,525
i i, - 2,166 2,166
- i, - 1,723 1,723
i . - 1,574 1,574
i - - 422 422
i . . 181 181
i - - 9 90
44 - - 40,655 40,699
$ 2,916,296 $ 7,590,931 $ - $ 166,553 $ 10,673,824
2021 8 31 50

4 8,450
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2021 8 31
$ 1,463,430 13.7
8,304,152 77.8
331,066 3.1
$ 10,098,648 94.6
$ 10,098,648 94.6
$ 2,122,811 19.9
662,378 6.2
203,574 1.9
322,124 3.0
662,132 6.2
331,066 3.1
811,103 7.6
407,481 3.8
2,339,374 21.9
2,236,605 21.0
$ 10,098,648 94.6
$ 10,098,648 94.6
2021 8 31 1
10 986 1
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Aaa 3.1
Al 20.4
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A3 26.8
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Baa2 10.2

94.6
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$ 44 $ - $ 44
24,707 - 24,707
7,267 - 7,267
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1,723 - 1,723
1,574 - 1,574
422 - 422
181 - 181
90 - 90
$ 40,699 $ - $ 40,699
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3
3
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$ - $ 10,098,648 $ - $ 10,098,648
$ - $ 10,098,648 $ - $ 10,098,648
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A
$3,750 5 0.06 5
0.05 10 0.04 1
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B
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2021 8 31
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0.01
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0.01

2021 8 31
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2021 8 31

2021 9 7 BBH
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2022 1
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2021 12 20
2021 9 1 2021 12 20 54 477 30 4,827
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{Exprassed in Australian Dollars)

Assets
Financial asseis at fair value through profit or loss (Note 2.2, 2.5)
Cash and cash equivalents (Nate 2.1}
Prepaid fees
Receivables for:
Interast (MNote 2.11)
Expense reimbursement (Note 2.5)
Units issued (Mote 2.10)
Tolal assels

Liabilities
Bank overdraft (Note 2.1}
Payables far:
Professional fees {Note 7.10)
Administrator fees (Nabe 7.14)
Custody fees (Mote 7.1B)
Fee Agent fees (Note 7.28)
Transfer Agent fees (Note 7.1C)
Distribution fees (Nole 7.1E)
Investment management fees (Note 7.20)
Agent Member Company fees (Mote 7.2E)
Manager Suppart Senvice Provider feas (Note 7.2F)
Liabilities {excluding equity)
Equity (being net assets attributable to the holders of units)

August 31, 2024

g 10,098,848
408,623

107,531

53.148
40,401
6,172
10,714,523

44

24,707
7,267
2,525
2,166
1,723
1,574

422
181
0

_40.699
s 10,673,824

e O

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AUD Short Term Bond Fund

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the Pericd from September 24, 2020 (Commencement of Operations)
through August 31, 2021

(Expressed in Australian Dollars)

Income August 31, 2021
Met incomel{loss) from financial instruments at FVTPLY
Interest income (Mote 2.11) 5 68872
Met realized gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (Mote 2,11, B) 3,206
Met change in unrealized appreciation on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (Note 2.11, &) 40,772
Met realized gain on foreign currency transactions (Mote 2.11, 6) 25
Taotal income 112 865
Expenses
Organization axpenses 54,323
Administrator fees (Mate 7.1A) 91,347
Profassional fees (Mote 7.10) 24,706
Printing fees 23,514
Cusztody fees (Nole 7.1B) 12,627
Fee Agent fees (Mote 7.2B) 10,754
Transfer Agent fees (Note 7.1C) 9,233
Investment management fees (Mote 7.20) 4,481
Distribution fees (Naote 7.1E} 4,481
Manager Support Service Provider fees (Note 7.2F) 296
Agent Member Company fees (Mole 7.2E) 296
Opearaling expenses 202,258
Expense reimbursemant (Nate 2.5) (166,412}
Operating profit 77,118

Total comprehensive income (being increase in net assets attributable
to the holders of units from operations) 5 77,118

MThis relates 1o net income from financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or lass (FWTPLY) including realized and
unrealized gains/{losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, realized gain on foreign curmency and
interest income.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financkal statements.
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AUD Short Term Bond Fund

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Period from September 24, 2020 (Commencement of Operations)
through August 31, 2021

(Expressed in Australian Dollars)

At September 24, 2020 (Commencement of Operations) % -
Issue of units (Mate 3) 13,241,346
Repurchases of units (Note 2.8, 3} (2,644,641}
Total comprehansive income (baing increase in nel agsels

altrbutable to the halders of unils from operations) 77.118
At August 31, 2021 5 10,673,824

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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AUD Short Term Bond Fund

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Period from September 24, 2020 (Commencement of Operations)
through August 31, 2021

(Expressed in Australian Dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities: August 31, 2021
Total comprehensive income (being increase in net assets atiributable to the holders of
units from operations) 5 77118

Adjustments ta reconcile total comprehensive income (being increase in net assels
attributable to the holders of units from aperations) to cash provided by operating

activities:
Purchases of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {15,816,002)
Progeeds from disposition of financial assets at fair value throwgh profit or loss 5,569,511
Met payments from setflement of forward contracts (25)
Met realized gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through prefit er loss (3,296)
Met change in unrealized appreciation on financial assets and lisbilities at fair value
through profit or loss (40,772}
Accretion of investments in debt securities {27)
Amartization of investments in debt securities 191,963
Increase in receivables for interast (53, 148)
Incraase in receivables for expense reimbursement (40,401}
Increasa in prepaid fees (107 531)
Increase in other payablas!™ 40 655

Met cash used in operating activities (10,181,854)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from units issued, net of change in recetvables for units issued 13,235174

Repurchases of units, net of change in payables for units repurchased (2,544 641}
Met cash provided by financing activities 10,690,633
Mat increase in cash and cash equivalents 408,579

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period (Note 2.1) -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period (Note 2.1} g 408,579

Supplemantary information on cash flows from operaling activities
Interest received § 15,725

™ Other payables comprise of payables for professional fees, administrator fees, custody fees, fee agent fees, transfer agent fees,
distribution fees, investment management fees, agent member company fees and manager support service provider fees as disclosed
in the Statement of Financial Position.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AUD Short Term Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements

For the Period from September 24, 2020 (Commencement of Operations)
through August 31, 2021

(Expressed in Australian Dollars)

1. ORGANIZATION

AUD Short Term Bond Fund (the "Series Trust™) is a Series Trust of Credil Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) Il (the
“Trust™), an open-ended umbralla unit trust constituted by a Master Trust Deed dated December 2, 2013 under Cayman
Islands law. The Seres Trust was established pursuant to a Supplemental Trust Deed dated August 28, 2020 and
executed by Elian Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee”), a trust company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman
lzlands. The Series Trust commenced operations on September 24, 2020 and will continue unfil the Final Repurchase
Day being the earliest practicable repurchase day being the earier of August 29, 2025 or any subsequent date as
mutually agreed by the Trustee and the Manager, and the earliest practicable repurchase day following the occurrence of
any of the following; the net asset value ("Nel fsset Value®) being the value of its total assels minus its liabilities
including accrued fees and expenses) on any Valuation Day is in respect of AUD Class Units AUD 1,000,000 or less and
on that valuation day or thereafter the Manager determines that all of the units of such class of units should be
compulsorily repurchazed by giving notice to all unitholders, or the Trustee and the Manager agree that all of the units of
such class of units should be compulsorily repurchased, each a "Compulsory Repurchase Event’.

The Trust is an exempted unit trust under the Trusts Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman lslands and registered under the
Mutual Funds Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands on January 22, 2014,

The principal office for the Trustee (and therefore the Series Trust) is One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman
K¥1-2005, Cayman Islands.,

The manager of the Series Trust is Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the “Manager”).

The Administrator, Custodian and Transfer Agent of the Series Trust Brown Brothers Hariman & Co.
(the "Administrator”, "Custodian” and “Transfer Agent”).

Credit Suisse International acts as the Fee Agent (the “Fee Agent”).
Credit Suisse Securiies (Japan) Limited acts as the Agent Member Company (the “Agent Member Company”).
The Investment Manager of the Series Trust is Daiwa Asset Management (Europe) Ltd. (the “Investment Manager”).

The Manager Support Service Provider of the Series Trust is Daiwa Asset Management Co. Ltd. (the "Manager Support
Service Provider™).

Effective February 15, 2021, the Manager authorized Tokai Tokyo Securities Co., Ltd. to act as a distributor of the units
in Japan. Effective February 3, 2021, the Manager authorized Chibagin Securities Co., Lid. 1o act as a distributor of the
units in Japan. Effective January 18, 2021, the Manager authorized Kyushu FG Securities, Inc. o act as a distribulor of
the units in Japan. Effective January 18, 2021, the Manager authorized Toyo Securities Co., Ltd. to act as a distributor of
the units in Japan. Prior to January 18, 2021, the Manager authorized Marusan Securities Co., Ltd. to act as a distributor
of the units in Japan, The Manager may appoint further distributors of the Units in the future (each a "Distributor” and
collectively the "Distributors").

The Series Trust is denominated in Australian Dollar ("AUD" or “$") and AUD Class Units are also denominated in
Australian Dollar.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to maintain a high degree of liguidity while providing stable income by
investing in Australian Dollar denominated high quality fixed and floaling rate debt instruments (the "Australian Bonds®
and those securities selected by the Investment Manager being the “Selected Bonds”), The Series Trust may also hold
AUD cash and AUD-denominated money market securities (including but not limited to commercial paper, cerlificates of
deposit and government bills) (the “Short=Term Instruments®, together with the AUD cash and Selected Bonds being the
"Portfolio™).

The Investment Manager shall have day-to-day investment decision-making and ongeing monitoring respoensibility over
the Portfolio.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Trustee on December 20, 2021,
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AUD Short Term Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements {continuad)

Far the Period from September 24, 2020 (Commencement of Operations)
through August 31, 2021

(Expressed in Australian Dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial stalements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The preparation of financial
statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of cerlain critical accounting estimates and requires the Trustee
and the Manager to exercise their judgment in the process of applying the Series Trust's accounting policies. Areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial slatements are disclosed in Note 4. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The Seres Trust has adopted Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27) (2012) (the
Amendments). Management concluded that the Series Trust meets the definition of an investment entity.

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amorlized cost, fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL) and fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The classification of
financial as=ets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics.
On initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assels as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL.
A financial assel is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

i) It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and,

ii) t= contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely represent payments of principal
and interest (SPPI.

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if any of the following apply:

i} lts contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding;

iy It is not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash flows, or to both
callect contractual cash flows and sell,

iif) At initial recognition, it is imevocably designated as messured at FVTPL when doing so eliminales or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recagnizing the gains and losses on them on different bases.
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Series Trust considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial azset containg a contractual term that could change the timing
or amount of contractiual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Series
Trust considers:
- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- leverage features;
- prepaymeant and extension features;
- terms that limit the Series Trust's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features), and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (2.g. periodical reset of interest rates).
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AUD Short Term Bond Fund

Motes to Financial Statements (continued)

For the Period from September 24, 2020 (Commencement of Operations)
through August 31, 2021

{Expressed in Ausiralian Dollars)

The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models:

- Held-to-collect business maodel: this includes cash and cash equivalents, prepaid fees, receivables for
interest, expense reimbursement and units issued. These financial assets are held to collect contractual cash
flow.

- Other business model: this includes financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. These financial assets
are managed and their performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking place.

In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held, the Series Trust
cansiders all of the relevant information about how the business is managed, including:

- the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This includes whether the
investment strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or
realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the perfermance of the portfolio is evaluated and reporied to the Series Trust's managerment;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and how those risks are managed;

- how the investment manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assetls to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales
for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust's continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cosl include bank overdraft, payables for professional fees, administrator fees,
custody fees, fee agent fees, transfer agent fees, distribution fees, investment management fees, agent member
company fees and manager support service provider fees,

Impairment of financial assets

The “expected credit loss” (ECL) model applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost and debt investment at
FWOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments.

Based on the Series Trust's assessment, the ECL model does not have a material impact on the Series Trust's financial
assets because:

- The majority of the financial assets are measured at FVTPL and the impairment requirements do not apply to such
instruments.

- The financial assels at amorlized cost are short-term (i.e. no lenger than 12 months), of high credit quality and/or highly
collateralized. Accordingly, the ECLs on such assets are expected to be small,

Mew standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the period from September 24, 2020
{Commencement of Operations) through August 31, 2021:

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual pericds beginning after September
24, 2020 (Commencement of Operations) and eardier application is permitted, however, the Series Trust has nol early
applied these new or amended standards in preparing these financial statements as they do not have a material effect on
the Series Trust's financial statements.

2.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Series Trust considers all cash, foreign cash and short-term deposits with original maturity of three menths or less to
be cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdraft is shown in liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.
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At August 31, 2021 the Series Trust held the following balances as cash and cash equivalents:

__August 31,2021

Time deposit ] 408,623
Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position 408,623
Bank overdraft {44}
Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Cash Flows -] 408,579

2.2 Financial Assets and Liabilities

(&) Classification
The Series Trust classifies financial assets and liabilities into the following categories:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
®  Mandatorily at FVTPL: Investments in debt securities

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss consist of the following:

August 31, 2021 August 31, 2021
- Fair Value = Cost
Investments in dabt securities E 10,098,648 5 10,057 875

Financial agzets at amortized cost:
= Cash and cash equivalents, prepaid fees, receivables for interest, expense reimbursement and units issued.

Financial liabilities at amorhized cosl:
B Oiher liabilities: bank overdraft, payables for professional fees, administrator fees, custody fees, fee agent fees,

transfer agent fees, distribution fees, investment management fees, agent member company fees and manager
suppor service provider fees,

(B) Recognition/Derecognition

The Series Trust recognizes financial assets and liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Regular purchazes and sales of investments are recognized on the irade date - the date on which the
Series Trust commits to purchase or sell the investment. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights lo receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or the Series Trust has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Financial liabilities are derecognized when its contraciual obligations are discharged, canceled or expired.

{C) Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value with transaclion costs
recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assels and
liabilifies at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss' category are presented in the Statement of
Caomprehensive Income in the period in which they arise. Realized gains or losses on sale of investments are calculated
using first-in-first-out method.

Financial assets and liabilities other than thase at fair value through profit or loss are carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method, less impairment losses, if any. This is considered to approximate fair value due fo the
short-term or immediate nature of these instruments.

(D) Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and trading securities)
is based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordery transaction between marketl participants at the
measurement date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. Investments or other assets for which
market quotations are not readily available are valued at their fair value as determined in good faith in accordance with

100/184



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AUD Short Term Bond Fund

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

For the Period from September 24, 2020 (Commencement of Operations)
through August 31, 2021

(Expressed in Australian Dollars)

procedures adopted by the Trustee with advice from the Manager. The resulting change in unrealized gains or losses are
reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(E) Investments in debt securities

The fair value is based on quoted market prices on a recognized exchange or sourced from a reputable
broker/counterparty, in the case of non-exchange traded instruments, at the Statement of Financial Position date without
any deduction for estimated fulure selling costs.

2.3 Offzetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilifies are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position only when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realize the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly. As at August 31, 2021, all financial assets and liabiliies are
shown at their gross amounts as none met the criteria for financial instrument offsetting, and therefore have not baen
offset in the Statement of Financial Position.

2.4 Receivables for Securities Seld and Payables for Securities Purchased

Receivables for securities sold and payables for securiies purchased represent trading fransactions that have been
contracted for but not yet settled on the Statement of Financial Pesition date, respectively. These amounts are
recognized initially and subsequently measured at fair value, less provision for impairment for amounts of receivables for
securifies sold. A provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence thal the Series Trust will not be
able to collect all amounts of receivables for securities sold. Significant financial difficulties of the broker, probability that
the broker will enter bankruptey or financial reorganization, and default in payments are considered indicators that the
amount of receivables for securities sold is impaired.

2.5 Expenses
Expenzes are recognized on an accrual basis in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The maximum fees, costs and expenses (the “Capped Expenses”) that may be deducted from the assets of the Series
Trust attributable to the AUD Class Units is 0.90% per annum of the Met Asset Value (the "TER Cap").

The Investment Manager shall instruct the Administrator on @ monthly basis to adjust the TER Cap by monitoring the
yield of the 2-Year Australian Government Bond. The TER Cap fee table is as follows:

2-year Australian Government Bond Yields | TER Cap

Less than or equal to 0.50% 0.40%

Above 0.50% and lass than or equal to 0.75% | 0.50%6

Abave 0.75% and less than or equal to 1.00% | 0.60%

Above 1.00% and less than or equal to 1.25% | 0.70%

Above 1.25% 0.90%

Any Capped Expenses of the Series Trust attributable to the AUD Class Units above the TER Cap shall be borne by the
Investment Manager.,

Faor the avoidance of doubt, the Capped Expenses:

(a) include, without limitation, the Operational Costs Fees, the Investiment Manager Fees, Audit Fees, Formation
Expenses, Distribution Fees, Administration Fees, Manager Support Service Provider Fees, Custody Fees,
Agent Member Gompany Fess, any legal and auditing costs that are not included in the Audit Fees and
expenses, annual fees payable in respect of the Series Trust or the Trust lo govemment bodies and agencies,
any insurance costs, any costs relating to the Offering Memorandum and other similar offering documents and
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the costs relating to the preparation, printing, translation and delivery of such documents and any taxes relating
to the purchase or disposal of securities, legal or compensation costs, licensing, tax reporting, anti-money
laundering compliance and moniloring, expenses related to the economic substance of the Series Trust,
expenzes related to the termination or the liquidation of the Series Trust, any costs and other charges and
expenses listed in the Offering Memorandum (to the extent such costs and expenses do not consfitute the
Ordinary Costs) but excluding litigation and indemnification expenses and any expenses that the Manager
determines to be exiraordinary expenses that have not been incurred in the ordinary course of business
("Extraordinary Expenses") and any broker fees or commissions (if any) and any issue or transfer taxes
chargeable in connection with any securiies transactions ("Broker Expenses”), or thal, in the Managers
determination, relale to the ongoing operation of the Series Trust; and

(b} exclude the Ordinary Costs, Extraordinary Expenses, Broker Expenses and any other extraordinary or
unanticipated fees, costs, expenses or liabililies that, in the Manager's determination, would not usually occur,

{c) Extraordinary Expenses, Broker Expenses and Miscellaneous Expenses shall fall outside of the TER Cap and
shall be paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the Trustee, out of the assets of the Series Trust

{d} In the event that a fee, cost or expense does not fall into either paragraph (a) or (b) above it shall be deemed
not to be a Capped Expense

{e) The TER Cap is dependent on the Investiment Manager fulfilling its cbligation to pay the Investment Manager
Expenses. In circumstances where the Investment Manager were to default on such obligation, it may not be
possible to maintain the TER Cap which would result in additional fees, costs and expenses being payable out
of the assets of the Series Trust.

2.6 Forelgn Currency Translation

{A) Functional and Presentation Currency

The performance of the Series Trust is measured and reported to the inveslors in Australian Dollars. The Truslee
considers the Australian Dollar as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying
transactions, events and conditions of the Series Trust. The financial statements are presented in Australian Dollars,
which is the Series Trust’s funclional and presentation currency.

(B) Transactions and Balances
Financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated in Australian Dollar amounts at the date
of valuation. Purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities, issue and repurchase of unilts and income and

expense items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Australian Dollar amounis on the respeciive dates of
such transactions.

Reported net realized or unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses resulfing from changes in foreign exchange rates
on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are included in net realized gain or loss on financial
assels and hiabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and net change in unrealized appreciation or depreciation on
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

Realized and unrealized appreciation or depreciation from foreign currency transactions and translation are disclosed
separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

2.7 Distributions

The current distribution policy of the Series Trust, in respect of AUD Class Units, is not to make distributions to
Unitholders. Cansequently, all the Series Trust's net income and realized capital gains will be reinvested and reflected in
the Met Asset Value of the applicable class of Units.

2.8 Repurchases of Units

The Series Trust has units which are repurchased at the holder's option. The Seres Trust classifies its pultable
instruments as liabilities in accordance with 1AS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Presentalion. The amendment
requires puttable financial instuments that meet the definition of a financial liability to be classified as equity where
certain strict criteria are met. Those criteria include:

= The puttable instruments must entitle the holder to a pro-rata share of net assets;
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= The puttable instruments must be the most subordinated class and class fealures must be identical,

= There must be no contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset other than the obligation on
the issuer to repurchase; and

®  The total expected cash flows from the puttable instrument over its life must be based substantially on the profit
or loss of the issuar.

As these conditions were met, the Series Trust's units have been classified as equity at August 31, 2021,

Units can be put back to the Series Trust at any time for cash equal 1o a proportionate share of the Series Trust's total
equity.

Units are carried at the repurchased amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial Position date if the holder
exercises the right to put the units back into the Series Trust.

Units are jssued and repurchased at prices based on the Series Trust's total equity per unit at the time of issue or
repurchase. The Series Trust's equity per unit is caleulated by dividing the total equity by the tolal number of cutstanding
units. Refer to Nate 3 for further discussian.

2.9 Indemnities

The Trustee and the Manager, on behalf of the Series Trust, enter inlo certain contracts that contain a variety of
indemnifications. The Series Trust's maximum exposure under these arangements is unknown. However, the Series
Trust has not had prior claims of losses pursuant to these contracts and expects the risk of loss to be remote,

2.10 Receivables for Units Issued and Payables for Units Repurchased

Receivable for unitz issued is carried at the issuance amount that is receivable at the Statement of Financial Position
date. Payable for repurchase of units is carried at the repurchase amount that is payable at the Statement of Financial
Pasition date.

2.11 Net incomel/{loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL

Met income from financial instruments at FYTPL includes realized and unrealized gainsflosses on financial assets and
liabilities and interest income. Met realized gain or loss from financial instruments at FYTEL is calculated using the first in,
first out method. Net realized gain or loss on financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL represents the difference between
the cost of the financial instruments and its setlement price of the sale trade. Met change in unrealized depreciation or
appreciation on financial assets and liabilities at FWTPL represents the difference between the carrying amount of a
financial instrument at the beginning of the period, or the transaction price if it was purchased in the current reporting
period and its carrying amount at the end of the reporting period. Refer to Note 7 for further details.

Interest income and expense (where relevant) is calculated using the effective interest method and recorded on an
accrual basis. Interest income and expense presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprise interest on
financial assels and financial liabilities measured at FVTPL.

212 Taxation

The Trust has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempting it from all local income, profits
and capital gains until a Compulsory Repurchase Event has occurred. Mo such taxes are levied in the Cayman Islands at
the present time.

The Series Trust could incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and capital gains.
Such income or gain would be recorded gross of withholding taxes in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Withhaolding taxes would be shown as a separate item in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Mo withholding tax expense was paid for the perod ended August 31, 2021,

The Series Trust may choeose to invest in securities domiciled in countries other than the Cayman Islands. Many of these
foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable to non-residents including the
Series Trust. These capital gains taxes are required to be determined on & self-assessment basis and, therefore, such
taxes may not be deducted by the Series Trust's broker on a "withhalding" basis.
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In accordance with 145 12 Income Taxes, the Series Trust is required to recagnize a tax liability when it is probable that
the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax liability to be assessed on the Series Trust's capital gains sourced from
such foreign country, assuming the relevant taxing authorities have full knowledge of all the facts and circumstances. The
tax liability is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant taxation authorities using the tax laws and
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. There is sometimes uncertainty
about the way enacted tax law is applied to offshore investment Series Trusts. This creates uncertainty about whether ar
not a tax liability will ultimately be paid by the Series Trust. Therefore, when measuring any uncerain tax liabilities
management considers all of the relevant facls and circumstances available at the time which could influence the
likelihoad of payment, including any formal or informal practices of the relevant tax autharities.

As at August 31, 2021, the Manager has determined that the Series Trust did not have a liability to record for any
unrecognized tax benefits in the accompanying financial statements. While this represents the Manager's best eslimale
there remains a risk that the foreign tax authorities will attempt to collect taxes on capital gains earned by the Series
Trust, This could happen without giving prior warning, possibly on a retrospective basis, and could result in a loss to the
Series Trust.

3. REPURCHASES OF UNITS

The Met Azset Value of each unit of the Series Trust is calculated by dividing the Net Asset Value of the Series Trust by
the total number of units of the Series Trust then outstanding. The Administrator computes the Net Asset Value of the
Series Trust at the close of business on each dealing day.

The price of units, for all purposes, is calculated and paid in Australian Dollars.

The minimum initial subscription must be no less than 1 unit. The initial purchase price of units is AUD 1 per unit. All
unitholders must complete a subscription application.

After the initial issue of units, an eligible investor may subscribe for units on any subsequent subscription date at the
relevant subscription price. All payments in respect of AUD Class Units must be made in Australian Dollar. The Trustee
may reject any subscription for any reason and without providing reasons,

The Trustee or its duly designated agent must receive the subscription price for the units on or prior to 7:00 p.m. (Tokyo
time} on the relevant dealing day. Subscription applications are irrevocable.

The total net assets, units outstanding and net assets value per unit as of August 31, 2021 were as follows:

Met Asset Value per

Classes of units Total net assets Units outstanding unit
ALID Class Units 5 10,673,624 10,805,038 & 1.0085

The aperational currency of the units is the Australian Dollar.

As of August 31, 2021, all issued units were held by five unitholders, who hold 61.80%, 17.91%, 13.62%, 5.41% and
1.15% of the interest in the net assets, respectively.

Unitholders may transfer their holdings in units only with the prior written consent of the Trustee which consent shall not
be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Mo transfer of units will be effective and binding on the Trustee or unitholder until
entered inta the Series Trusts register of unitholders.

Each unitholder may submit 1o the Trustee or its duly designated agent a repurchase notice requesting to have all or a
portion of its units repurchased at the repurchase price on the relevant repurchase date (the "Repurchase Price").
Repurchase arders may be submitted in either the relevant currency or in units. If such nolice is not in respect of the
entire holding units of such unitholder recorded in the register of unitholders then the Trustee in ils sole discretion may
apply a minimum repurchase requirement of 1 unit. Repurchase notices are imevocable,

At the time of each repurchase of units prior to the Final Repurchase Day, no repurchase fee is applied to each unit
being repurchased.

Amounis payable to the unitholder in connection with the repurchase of units of any class is paid in cash but may be
made in kind (or partially in kind) by the distribution of securities held by the Trustee to the extent that the Trustes, in
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consultation with the Manager, determines it to be in the best interests of the unitholder. If such a determination is made
by the Trustee, distributions to all repurchasing unitholder on the same day is made on the same basis.

Payment may also be made in such other currency that may be freely purchased with such applicable cumrency as
a unitholder may request, provided that any foreign exchange cost shall be deducted from the amount payable to such
unitholder. No such repurchase proceeds will bear interest prior to actual distribution,

During the period ended August 31, 2021, the proceeds from units issued, repurchased and outslanding were as follows:

At September 24,  Proceeds from units  Proceeds from units At
Classes of units 2020 isswed repurchased August 31, 2021
AUD Class Units 3 - & 13,241,346 5 (2B44,641) 5 10,596,705

During the period ended August 31, 2021, the number of units issued, repurchased and outstanding were as follows:

At September 24, At
Classes of units 2020 Units issued Units repurchased August 31, 2021
ALD Class Units - 13,241,074 (2,635,036} 10,505,038

The issue and repurchase of units and payments in respect of such transactions will be suspended in any circumstances
where the calculation of the Net Asset Value per unit is suspended. The Trustee will inform unitholder of such a
suspension as soon as practicable after it is imposed or lifted. Subscription applications and repurchase notices cannot
be withdrawn during such suspension and will be processed for the next subscription date or repurchase date, as the
case may be,

4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Management makes eslimates and assumptions conceming the future that affect the reporied amounis of assels and
liabilities. Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The Serles Trust may, from time to time, hold
financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets, such as over-the-counter derivatives. Fair values of such
instruments are determined by using valuation technigues. Where valuation techniques (for example, models) are used
to determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed by the Manager.

5. FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT

5.1 Principal Risk Factors of the Series Trust

The Series Trust's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk {including currency risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The management of these risks is camied out by the Manager under policies
approved by the Truslee.

The Series Trust uses different methods to measure and manage the various types of risks to which it is exposed, these
methods are explained below.

{A) Market Risk

(i) Currency Risk

Securities held by the Series Trust are denominated in Australian Dollars, thus the Manager believes that the Series
Trust has little currency risk exposure, and is not subject to risk due to direct fluctuations in the prevailing levels of foreign
curmrency rates.

{ii) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that prices of fixed income securities generally increase when interest rates decline and
decrease when interest rates increase. Prices of longer lerm securities generally change more in response fo interest
rate changes than prices of shorter term securities. The Series Trust may lose money if short-term or long-term interest
rales rise sharply or otherwise change in @ manner not anticipated by Series Trust management. When interest rates
fluctuate, the duration of the security may be used as an indication of the degree of change in the debt price of the debt
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security, The bigger the securily’s duration value, the larger the change in the price of the debt security for a given
movernent in interest rates may be. Therefore, the Net Asset Value may fluctuate.

The following tables analyze the Series Trust's interest rate risk exposure. It includes the Series Trusl's assets and
[iabilities at fair value, categorized by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates.

Non-interest
AL August 31, 2021 Up to 1 year 1 -6 years COver 5 years bearing Total
Assets
Financial assels at fair value through profit or
koss $ 2507717 5 7500931 S - 5 - £ 10,098,645
Cash and cash eguivalents 408,623 - - - 408,623
Prepaid fees - - = 107,531 107,531
Recaivables for:
Intarest - - - 53,148 53,148
Expense reimbursement - - - 40,401 40,401
Units issuad = - - 6.172 6,172
Total Assets 5 2916340 § 7,580,531 5 = § 207,252 5 10,714,523
Non-interest
At August 31, 2021 Up to 1 year 1= 5 years OQwer & years bearing Total
Liabilities
Bank overdraft 5 44 5 - 8§ - % - § EES
Payables for:
Professional fees - - - 24,707 24 707
Administrator fees - - - 7267 7.267
Custody fees - - - 2 525 2 625
Fee agent fees - - - 2168 2,168
Transfer Agent fees = - - 1,723 1,723
Distribution fees - - - 1,574 1,574
Investment management fees - - = 422 422
Agent member company fees - - - 181 181
Manager Suppont Service Provider fees - - - a0 890
Liabilities {excluding net assets
attributable to the holder of units) 44 - = 40,665 40, 698
Total interest and sensitivity gap § 2916286 § T7.590831 § - & 166,553 & 10,673,824

At August 31, 2021, should interest rates have lowered or risen by 50 basis peints with all other variables remaining
constant, the increase or decrease in net assels attributable to the holder of units from operations for the period would
amount to appreximately $48.450, assuming that the cash position will be held for one year. This is caused mosily by the
changes in markel values of debt securities.

{iii} Market Price Risk

The market price of securities owned by the Series Trust may go up or down, sometimes rapidly or unpredictably.
Securities may decline in value due to factors affecling securities markets generally or particular industries represented in
the securities markets. The value of a security may decline due to general market conditions which are not specifically
related o a particular company, such as real or perceived adverse economic conditions, supply and demand for
parficular securifies or instruments, changes in the general cullook for corporate eamings, changes in interest or
currency rates or adverse investor senliment. They may also decline due to factors which affect
a particular industry or industries, such as labor shorages or increased production costs and compelitive conditions
within an industry. During a general downturn in the securities markels, multiple asset classes may decline in value
simultaneously. Equity securities generally have greater price volatility than fixed income securities.
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The tables below summarize the concentration in market price rigk as at August 31, 2021:

Industry Name Fair Value % of Net Assets
Investment in debt securities

Aute Manufacturers s 1,463,430 13.7%
Banks 8,304,152 T7.8%
Government 331,066 3.1%
Total investment in debt securities £ 10,058,648 94.6%
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 10,088,648 94.6%
Country Name Fair Value % of Net Assets
Investment in debt securities

Australia 5 212281 19.5%
Canada 662,378 6.2%
France 203,574 1.9%
Gemmany 322124 3.0%
Japan 662,132 £6.2%
Multi-Mational 331,066 3.1%
Spain 811,103 T.6%
United Arab Emirates 407 481 3.8%
United Kingdom 2,338,374 21.9%
United States 2 238 605 21.0%
Total investment in debt securities $ 10,098,648 94.6%
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss -1 10,098,648 94.6%

As the Series Trust's invesiments are carried at fair value with fair value changes recognized in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, all changes in market condifions will directly affect the total net assels and total comprehensive
income.

An increase in market prices of the investments in debt securities of 1% at August 31, 2021, would, all else being equal,
increase net assels attributable to the holder of units by $100,986. A decrease of 1% would, all else being equal, have an
aqual but opposite effect.

(B) Credit Risk
The Series Trust takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in
full when they fall due.

Changes in an issuer's credit rating or the market's perception of an issuer's creditworthiness may affect the value of the
Series Trust's investment in that issuer. The degree of credit risk depends on both the financial condition of the issuer
and the terms of the obligation.

All transactions in listed securifies are settfled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is
considered minimal, 2 delivery of gecurities sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made
on a purchase once the securities have been received by the broker, The trade will fail if either party fails to meet their
obligation.

The Investment Manager monitars the Series Trust's credit pasition on an an-going basis,

The maximum exposure to credit risk of all financial assets at August 31, 2021 is the carrying amounts as shown on the
Statement of Financial Position. Mo collateral or other credit enhancements are held by the Series Trust. None of these
assets are impaired or past due.

At August 31, 2021 the clearing and depository operations for the Series Trust's security transactions are mainly
concentrated with the Custodian, with a Fitch rating of A+, Al August 31, 2021, substantially all cash and cash
equivalents and investments are placad in custody with the Custodian,

The Series Trust's policy to manage this risk is to invest in debt secunties that have an investment grade
by a well-known rating agency, Moody's, The Series Trust may also invest in unrated assets where a raling is assigned
by the investment advisor using an approach that is consistent with the approach used by that rating agency.

107/184



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AUD Short Term Bond Fund

MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)

For the Period from September 24, 2020 (Commencement of Operations)
through August 31, 2021

{Expressed in Australian Dollars)

The following table summarizes the credit gquality of the Series Trusls debt portfolio at August 31, 2021 as
a percentage of net assets.

Rating* % of Net Assets

Aaa 31%
Al 20.4%
A2 20.8%
A3 ; 26.8%
Baal 13.3%
Baa2 10.2%

S4.6%

“Security ratings, if any, are obtained from Moody s/S&P's Investor Senvice,

(C}) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk exists when particular investments are difficult to purchase or sell. The Series Trust's investments in illiquid
securities may reduce the returns of the Series Trust because it may be unable to sell the illiquid securities
at an advantageous time or price. To the extent that the Series Trust's principal investment strategies invelve non-
developed couniry securities, derivatives or securities with substantial market andlor credit risk, the Series Trust will tend
to have the greatest exposure to liquidity risk.

The tables below analyze the Series Trust's financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based on the remaining
pericd at the Statement of Financial Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

At August 31, 2021 Less than 1 month 1= 3 months Tatal

Bank overdrafl 5 44 5 - 3 44

Payables for:
Professional fees 24,707 - 24,707
Administrator fees 7,267 - ¥.267
Custody fees 2,525 - 2,525
Fee agent fees 2,166 - 2,166
Transfer agant fees 1,723 - 1,723
Distribution fees 1,574 - 1,574
Investment management fees 422 - 422
Agent member company fees 181 - 181
Manager support senvice provider fees a0 - a0

Contractual cash out flows % 40,685 2§ - 5 40,698

Units are repurchased on demand al the holder's option. However, the Trustee does not envision that this contractual
maturity disclosed will be representative of the actual cash outflows, as holders of these instrumeants typically retain them
for the medium to long term.

The Manager monitors the Series Trust's liquidity position on an on-going basis.
Liguidity risk is managed by investing na more than 15% of the Net Asset Value in illiguid assets.

(D) Risk Management

The Series Trust's Investment Manager's team is supported by cerain risk management systems and professionals,
which provide regular reporting on all portfolio positions and quantitative risk measures. Prospeciive investors should be
aware that no risk management system is fall-safe, and no assurance can be given that risk frameworks employed by the
Manager (e.g., stop-win, stop-loss, sharpe ralios, loss limits, value-at-risk ar any other methodology now known or later
developed) will achieve their objectives and prevent or othenwise limit substantial losses. Mo assurance can be given that
the risk management systems and technigues or pricing models will accurately predict future trading patterns or the
mannear in which investrnants ane priced in financial markets in the future,

(E) Capital Risk Management

The capital of the Series Trust is represented by the net assets attributable o the holder of units. The amount of net
assets aftributable to the holder of units can change significantly on a daily basis as the Series Trust is subject to daily
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subscriptions and repurchases at the discretion of the unitholder. The Series Trust's objective when managing capital is
to zafeguard the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concerm in order to provide returns for the unitholder and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of the investment
activities of the Series Trust. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Series Trust's policy is to perform the
following:

B Monitor the level of daily subscriptions and repurchases relative to the liquid assets and adjust the amount of
distributions the Series Trust pays to the holder of units.

®  Repurchase and issue new units in accordance with the constitutional documents of the Senes Trust.
The Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to the holder of units.
5.2 Additional Series Trust's Risks

(A} Custody Risk

Meither the Trustee nor the Manager controls the custodianship of the Series Trust's entire holding of securities. The
Custodian or other banks or brokerage firms selected to acl as custodians may become insclvent, causing the Series
Trust to lose all or a portion of the funds or securities held by those custodians.

(B) Risk of Indemnification

The Trustee, the Manager, the Administrator, the Custodian, and other parties, and each of their respective agents,
principals, officers, employees, and affiliates are entitlied to be indemnified out of the assets of the Series Trust under
certain circumstances which may result in a decrease in Net Asset Value per unit.

(C) Settlement Risk

Settlement and clearance procedures in certain foreign markets differ significantly from those in the United States, the
European Union and Japan. Foreign setflement and clearance procedures and trade regulations also may involve certain
risks (such as delays in payment for or delivery of securifies) not typically asscciated with the settlement of United States
investments. At limes, settlements in certain foreign countries have not kept pace with the number of securities
transactions. These problems may make it difficult for the Manager to carry out transactions for the account of the Series
Trust,

If the Manager cannot setlle or is delayed in setfling a purchase of securities, it may miss attractive investment
opportunifies and cerain of the Series Trust's assets may be uninvested with no return eamed thereon for some year, If
the Manager cannot setfle or is delayed in setlling & sale of securities, the Series Trust may lose maoney if the value of
the security then declines or, if it has contracted to sell the security o another party; the Series Trust could be liable for
any losses incurred.

(D) Counterparty and Broker Risk

The financial institutions and counterpariies, including banks and brokerage firms, such as the Custodian, with which the
Manager or its delegate trades or invests for the account of the Series Trust, may encounter financial difficulties and
default on their respective obligations owed in respect of the Series Trust. Any such default could result in material losses
to the Series Trust. In addition, the Manager may pledge collateral for the account of the Series Trust to the
counterparties in order o secure cerlain fransactions. No collateral was pledged by the Manager during the period ended
August 31, 2021.

The Series Trust has not offset any financial assels or liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position,

(E) Concentration Risk
The Investment Manager will invest substantially all of the proceeds from the sale of the Unils in the Selected Bonds and

therefore losses incurred by the Selected Bonds will have a material adverse effect on the Series Trust's overall financial
position.

(F) Risk of investing In Australian Bonds

Exposure to instruments of issuers may involve significant economic and political risks, By investing in Australian Bonds,
the Series Trust will be exposed to the direct or indirect consequences of political, social and economic changes in
Australia. Political changes may affect the willingness of the Australian issuers to make or provide for fimely payments of
their debt obligations. The country's and local economic status, as refiected, among other things, in its inflation rate, the

109/184



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AUD Short Term Bond Fund

Notes to Financial Statements {continued)

For the Period from September 24, 2020 (Commencement of Operations)
through August 31, 2021

{Expressed in Australian Dollars)

amount of its external debt and ifs gross domestic product, will also affect the local issuers' ability to honor their
obligations.

(G) No Interest in the Selected Bonds

Amy refurn on the Units depends, amangst other things, on the performance of the Selected Bonds. An investment in
Units dees not give a Unitholder a direct interest in the Selected Bonds.

(H} Early Termination of the Series Trust
Although the Final Repurchase Day of the Series Trust is scheduled for August 28, 2025, the Final Repurchase Day will
be brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event ocour,

(1) Other Risk

In March 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Heallh Organization. The situation
remains dynamic with various cities and countries around the world responding in different ways to address the outbreak.
Uncertainty remains regarding the length of the disruption, as well as the ultimate impact, which the pandemic may have
on economic and market conditions globally, The value of assets held in the Series Trust has not been adjusted due 1o
COVID-19, and Management notes no significant performance issues for the Series Trust as a result of the pandemic.

Management and the Trustee are monitoring developments relaling to COVID-18 and are coordinating its operational
response based on existing business continuity plans and on guidance from glabal health organizations, relevant
govemnmments, and general pandemic response best practices.

5.3 Fair Value Estimation and Hierarchy Designation

The Series Trust applies IFRS 13, 'Fair value measurement’ and utilizes the last traded market price for its fair valuation
inputs for both financial assets and liabilities.

An aclive market is a market in which transactions for the assel or liability take place with sufficient frequency and
velume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities thal are not traded in an aclive market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Series Trust uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at each period end date. Valuation techniques used for non-standardized financial instruments such as options,
currency swaps and other over-the-counter derivatives, include the use of comparable recent arm's length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and
other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants making the maximum use of market inputs and relying
as little as possible on enfity-specific inputs,

For instruments for which there is no active market, the Series Trusl may use internally developed models, which are
usually based on valuation methods and technigues generally recognized as standard within the industry. Some of the
inputs to these models may not be market observable and are therefore estimated based on assumptions.
The output of & model is always an esfimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and
valuation techniques employed may not fully reflect all factors relevant to the positions the Series Trust helds, Valuations
are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, to allew for additional factors including model risk, Hguidity risk and
counterparty risk.

The Series Trust classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements.

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

® Level 1 inputs are quoled prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

B Level 2 inpuls are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are abservable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

®  Level 3 inputs are unobhservable inputs for the asset or liability,
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its enlirety is determined on

the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the
significance of an inpul is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurement uses
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abservable inputs that require significant adjustiment based on unobservable inpuls, that measurement is a Level 3
measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
judgment, considering factors specific fo the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgment by the Administrator, under advisement
of the Manager. The Administrator, under advisement of the Manager, congiders observable data to be that market data
that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by
independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

The following is a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs used as of August 31, 2021 in valuing the Series
Trust's financial assets held for trading:

{Unadjusted)
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for

Identical Significant Other Significant
Financial Assets Designated at Fair Investments  Observable Inputs  Unobservable Fair Value at
Value Through Profit or Loss (Level 1) {Level 2) Inputs {Level 3) August 31, 2021
Investment in debt securities ] - % 10098648 5 - & 10,056 648
Financial assets, at fair value through
profit or loss $ = % 10088648 % - & 10,098,648

During the period ended August 31, 2021, there were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3.

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued baged on quoted market
prices, dealer quotations or allernative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within Leval 2,
These include over-the-counter derivatives and debt securifies. As Level 2 investiments include positions that are not
traded in active markets andfor are subject to tfransfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/or
non-transferability, which are generally baged on available market information.

Investments classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently.
As of August 31, 2021, the Series Trust did not hold investments classified as Level 3.

Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss

(il At August 31, 2021, cash and cash equivalents and all other assets and liabilities (including prepaid fees,
receivables for interest, expense reimbursement and units issued, bank overdraft and payables for professional
fees, administrator fees, custody fees, fee agent fees, fransfer agent fees, distribution fees, investment
management fees, agent member company fees and manager support service provider fees) are deemed shorl-
term financial assets and liabilities whose carrying amounts approximate fair value because of their short-term
nalure. Refer to Mote 2 for a description of the valuation techniques.

(i) MNet assets aftributable to the holder of units. The Series Trust repurchases and issues the unils at the amount
equal to the proportionate share of net assets of the Series Trust at the time of repurchase, calculated on a
basis consistent with that used in these financial statements. Accordingly, the camying amount of net assets
attributable to the holder of units approximates their fair value.

6. NET GAIN ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

August 31, 2021

Met gain on financial assats and liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss consist of the following:

Met realized gain on investmeants in debt securities 5 3321
Met realized less on investments in foreign currency
transaclions {25)
Total net realized gain on financial assets and Rabilities at fair
value through profit or loss 5 3,286

Movermnant in net unrealized appreciation on investments in
debt securities 5 AD T2
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7. FEES, EXPENSES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
7.1 Fees and Expenses.

(A) Administrator Fees

The Administrator receives an annual fee of 0.06% on the first US$500 million of net assets, 0.05% on the next US$500
million of the net assets and 0.04% on the net assets over US$1 billion, subject to a monthly minimum fee of $3,750. The
fees earned by the Administrator during the period ended August 31, 2021 and outstanding fees payable to the
Administrator as of August 31, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement
of Financial Position, respectively.

{B) Custody Fees

The Custadian will be entitied to receive a fee of 0.03% per annum of the Met Asset Value accrued on and calculated as
at each valuation day, payable monthly in arrears. The fees earned by the Custodian during the period ended August 31,
2021 and ocutstanding fees payable to the Custodian as of August 31, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively,

(C) Transfer Agent Fees

The Transfer Agent receives an annual fee of 0.01% of net assels and a $10 fee per transaction. The fees earned by the
Tranmsfer Agent during the period ended August 31, 2021 and outstanding fees payable to the Transfer Agent as of
August 31, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial
Posilion, respectively,

(D) Professional Fees

Professional fees include legal and audit fees. The fees paid during the pericd ended August 31, 2021 and outstanding
fees payable as of August 31, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement
of Financial Position, respectively.

(E) Distribution Fees

The Distributors are entitled to receive a fee of up to and including 0.30% per annum of the Net Asset Value accrued on
and calculated as at each valuation day multiplied by the fraction of units of such class for which the Distributors are
unitholders divided by the total number of units issued in respect of such class of units, and payable maonthly in arears
{the “Distribution Fees").

The Distribution Fees may be adjusted and notified by the Investiment Manager to the Administrator on a monthly basis in
accordance with the Distribution and Repurchase Agreement and are linked to the 2-year Australian Government Bond
Yields as shown in table below.

2-year Australian Government Bond Yields DISLI‘I!]HHDII Faes
ercentage
(per annum of the MNet Asset Value)
Less than or equal to 0.50% 0.05%
Above 0.50% and less than or equal to 0.75% 0.10%
Above 0.75% and less than or equal to 1.00% 0.15%
Above 1.00% and less than or equal to 1.25% 0.20%
Above 1.25% 0,30%

The Distribution Fees are payable by the Administrator, on behalf of the Manager, out of the assets of the Series Trust,
The fees eamed by the Distributors during the period ended August 31, 2021 and outstanding fees payable 1o the
Distributors ag of August 31, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement
of Financial Position, respectively.
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7.2 Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered 1o be related if one party has the ability to contral the ather party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The Trustee, Fee Agent, Manager and Agent Member
Company are all related parties to the Series Trust,

Thera were no other transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of business.

(A) Trustee Fees
The Trustee is entitled to receive a fixed annual fee of US510,000 per annum payable annually in advance out of the
Operational Costs Fee.

(B) Fee Agent Fees

The Fee Agent receives an annual fee of 0.12% of Net Assels Value (the "Operational Costs Fees"), accrued on and
calculated as at each valuation day. The Operational Costs Fees are paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the Trustee
out of the assets of the Series Trust. The fees earned by the Fee Agent during the period ended August 31, 2021 and
outstanding fees payable to the Fee Agent as of August 31, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respeclively.

The Fee Agent is responsible for paying the Manager Fees, the Trustee Fees and costs and expenses, which are, in the
reasonable judgement of the Fee Agent, determined as associated costs and expenses of the Manager Fees and
Trustee Fees (the "Ordinary Costs").

Far the avoidance of doubt, the Fee Agent is not responsible for the payment of the capped expenses, extraordinary
expenses, broker expenses or miscellaneous expenses. Capped expenses will be paid by the Administrator, on behalf of
the Trustee, out of the assets of the Series Trust up to and including the TER Cap, and any Capped Expenses above the
TER Cap will be bome by the Investment Manager. Extraordinary Expenses, Broker Expenses and Miscellaneous
Expenses fall outside of the TER Cap and shall be paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the Trustes, out of the assels
of the Series Trust,

To the extent that the Operational Costs Fees do not cover the Ordinary Costs, the Fee Agent will be liable for any
oulstanding amounts. Any amounts remaining following payment of the Ordinary Costs will be retained by the Fee Agent
as its remuneration for acling as fee agent in respect of the Series Trusl.

The Operational Costs Fees will be payable quarterly in arrears in the amount accrued from and excluding, for the first
acerued pericd only, the Initial Closing Day, and for all other accrued periods, the last day of each calendar quarter, each
being a "Fee Calculation Day®, to and including, for all but the last accrual period, the next Fee Calculation Day, and for
the last accrual period, the Final Repurchase Day or if such day iz not also a Valuation Day then the immediately
preceding Valuation Day (the "Final Valuation Day™).

For the avoidance of doubt, should the Final Valuation Day not also be a Fee Calculation Day, the last accrual periad
shall end on the Final Valuation Day.

(C) Manager Fees
The Manager is entitled to receive out of the Operational Costs Fee, 2a management fee of US35,000 per annum payable
moanthly in arrears,

(D) Investment Management Fees

The Invesiment Manager is entitled to receive a fee of up to and including 0.30% per annum of the Net Asset Value
accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears. The Investment Manager Fees will
be paid by the Administratar, on behalf of the Trustes, out of the assets of the Series Trust.

The Investment Management Fees may be adjusted and notified by the Investment Manager to the Administrator on a

monthly basis in accordance with the Investment Management Agreement and are finked to the 2-year Australian
Government Bond Yields as shown in table below.
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Investment Management Fees
Percentage
{per annum of the Net Asset Value)

2-yvear Australian Government Bond Yields

Less than or equal to 0.50% 0.05%
Above 0.50% and less than or equal to 0.75% 0.10%
Above 0,75% and less than or equal o 1.00% 0.15%
Above 1.00% and less than or equal to 1.25% 0.20%
Above 1.25% 0.30%

The fees earned by the Investment Manager during the peried ended August 31, 2021 and outstanding fees payable lo
the Investment Manager as of August 31, 2021, have been disclozed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the
Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(E) Manager Support Service Provider Fees

The Manager Support Service Provider Fees is entitled to receive an annual fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset
Value accrued on and calculated as at each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears. The Manager Support Service
Provider Fees are paid by the Administrator, on behalf of the Trustee, out of the assets of the Series Trust. The fees
earned by the Manager Support Service Provider Fees during the period ended August 31, 2021 and ocutstanding faes
payable 1o the Manager Support Service Provider Fees as of August 31, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financial Position, respectively.

(F) Agent Member Company Fees

The Agent Member Company is entitled to receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Net Asset Value accrued on and
calculated as at each valuation day and payable quarterly in arrears. The Agent Member Campany Fees are paid by the
Administrator, on behalf of the Manager out of the assets of the Series Trust. The fees earned by the Agent Member
Company during the period ended August 31, 2021 and outstanding fees payable lo the Agent Member Company as of
August 31, 2021, have been disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Statement of Financisl
Position, respectively.

8. BORROWING AND LEVERAGE POLICY

The Serigs Trust may borrow up to 10% of its Net Asset Value if required to facilitate short term cash flows. During the
period ended August 31, 2021, the Series Trust did not incur any barrowings.

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

It was announced on September 7, 2021 BBH & Co. ("BBH") has entered into an agreement with State Street
Corporation ("State Street™) under which State Street will acquire BBH's Investor Services business; which includes its
custody, fund accounting and administration, transfer agency, depositary services, foreign exchange and securities
lending services. The transaction is expected to be completed in the first quarter of 2022, subject to customary closing
conditions and regulatory approvals. BEH and State Street are committed to providing uninterrupled service and a
seamless transition for our clients.

The Trustee has evaluated all subsequent transactions and events thraugh December 20, 2021, the date on which these
financial statements were available to be issued. Effective September 1, 2021 through December 20, 2021, there were
subscriptions of $540,477 and repurchases of $304 827. There are no ofher subsequent events to repori as relates to the
Series Trust.
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10,914,948 910,524,962
46,689 3,894,796
10,868,259 906,630,166
10,838,502
1.0027 84
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1,935,578,210
1,648,008

11 32,064,569
7,793,768,536
293,320,639
27 182,257,271,267
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2020 12 31

2020 2019
usD usd
16,025 1,843 34,534 3,972
16,025 1,843 34,534 3,972
4 16,025 1,843 34,534 3,972
5 220,000 25,304 215,000 24,729
(21) @
236,025 27,148 249,513 28,699
6 (111,476) (12,822) (143,734) (16,532)
124,549 14,326 105,779 12,167
124,549 14,326 105,779 12,167
7
124,549 14,326 105,779 12,167
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2020 12 31

2020 2019

uSsD uSsD
9 1,643,796 189,069 1,436,186 165,190
10 220,970 25,416 217,427 25,008
1,864,766 214,485 1,653,613 190,199
10 217,933 25,067 131,329 15,105
217,933 25,067 131,329 15,105
11 735,000 84,540 735,000 84,540
911,833 104,879 787,284 90,553
1,646,833 189,419 1,522,284 175,093
1,864,766 214,485 1,653,613 190,199

2021 10

Brian Burkholder
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2020 12 31
uSsD uSsD usD
2020
735,000 84,540 787,284 90,553 1,522,284 175,093
124,549 14,326 124,549 14,326
12 31 735,000 84,540 911,833 104,879 1,646,833 189,419
2019
735,000 84,540 681,505 78,387 1,416,505 162,926
105,779 12,167 105,779 12,167
12 31 735,000 84,540 787,284 90,553 1,522,284 175,093
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2020 12 31
2020 2019

usp usD
124,549 14,326 105,779 12,167
4 (16,025) (1,843) (34,534) (3.,972)
21 2
108,524 12,482 71,266 8,197
(3,543) (408) (10,575) (1,216)
(3,543) (408) (10,575) (1,216)
86,604 9,961 127,594 14,676
86,604 9,961 127,594 14,676
4 16,025 1,843 34,534 3,972
207,610 23,879 222,819 25,629
207,610 23,879 222,819 25,629
1,436,186 165,190 1,213,367 139,561
1,643,796 189,069 1,436,186 165,190
9 1,643,796 189,069 1,436,186 165,190
1,643,796 189,069 1,436,186 165,190
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2020 2019

16,025 34,534

16,025 34,534
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2020 2019
220,000 215,000
220,000 215,000

2020 2019
(34,668)
(1,182) (191)
(3,201) (3,119)
(107,093) (105,756)
(111,476) (143,734)

2039 10 10
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SBI  PICTET

J REIT

us

2020

2020 2019
1,643,796 1,436,186
1,643,796 1,436,186

2020 2019

220,970 217,427
220,970 217,427
2020 2019

217,933 131,329
217,933 131,329
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2020 2019
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31

220,863 220,863 215,000 215,000

220,863 220,863 215,000 215,000

214,732 214,732 25,573 25,573
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
949,732 949,732 760,573 760,573

2020 2019
220,000 220,000 215,000 215,000
220,000 220,000 215,000 215,000
2020 2019
107,093 105,756
107,093 105,756

2020 12 31
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Lrad Suisse Managenen] {Cmyma) Limilad
Flmancil s fements for the year snded 51 December 2000

Statement of Profit or Loss for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

UsD F-'ﬁw 2020 2019

Inferast income 16,025 24,534
= of wiich interest Income from instruments al amorlised cost 16,025 34,534
MNet interest income i 16,025 34,534

Senvieatiesincome T LB 0000 915,000
Other Ioss T T
Mat revenuas 236,025 249,513

‘General, admiristralive and other operating expenses B (111,476) (143,734)
Operating profit before allowance and taxation 124,545 105,773

“Profit before tax 124,549 105,779

Prafit after tax 124,548 105,779

The accomparnying nofes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Crodd Setsso Managemen! [Cayeaan] Limilnd
tofes o Fimancil stafemants for the year ended 5V Decemdber 2000

Statement of Financial Pasition as at 31 December 2020

UsD W 2020 2019
IR L R e B A R
Cash and due from banks & 1,643,795 1,435,186
Dt}mrassetslﬂﬂm,ﬁ'?ﬂm?,r#ﬂ?
Total assets 1,864,768 1,663,613
Liabilities e AT
Other Babilities 10 217,633 131,309
Total liabilities 217,533 131,328
Shareholders’ equity
SRl e s e e 73000 735,000
Retained earmings 911,833 TAT, 284
Total shareholders’ aquity 1,646,833 1,522,284
Total liabilities and shareholders’ aquity 1,864,766 1,653,613

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors en 10 June 2021

Director

Brian Burkholder

it i ™ e

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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Creck? Siesce Maragemant (Cayenad) Limifsd
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Share  Rotained
Usnh l:.:"l.FI“HI a&[r-'rgﬁ Total
Rl T
Balanceat 1January | ... 735000 787,284 1502284
Prodit for the yaar - 124 545 124,549
Balance at 31 December 735,000 911,833 1.545.E§

2019
Bolanceattlamvary ... 735000 681505 1416505
Prodit for the year — 105,778 105,778
Balance at 31 December 735,000 787,284 1,522 284

The accompaming notes farm an integral part of these financiai statermants.
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Crackt Suisse Mansgemand (Cayman) Lenvied
heotes fo Financial stafemants for tha year sngad 31 Decaniber 2000

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

UsSD mﬁ 2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities

Prafit for the year 194 Hag 105,779
HAdjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash
“generated from operating activities

Non-cash items included in net profit before

tax and other adjustments:

Interest Income. 4 (15,005) (34,534)
Cash generated from operating activities

before changes in operating assets and

liabilities 108,524 71.266
Net (increase) in operating assets: S .
Other assel N )
Met (increase) in cperating assels (3,543) (10,575}
Metincrease inoperatingNabliles: | i
(Hher liabities HE 60 127 554
Met increase in operating liabilites 86604 127,594
Interest income received 4 16,025 3-‘5.5‘3'5 )
Net cash generated from operating activity 207,610 322 819
Met increase in cash and cash eguivalents 207,610 292 819
Cash and cash equivalents af tha beginning of year 1,436,186 1,212 367
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 1,643,796 1,436,186
Cash and due from barks g 1,643,706 1,436,186
Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of year 1,643,796 1,436,186

The accompamying nofes form an infegral part of these financial statements.
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Crenchf Suissip Medseparnant (Cepman] imadd
et o Fregreisd slwlpmanty G fha yaas snded 31 Decambar 2000

MNotes to the financial statements
1.  Principal activities

Credit Suisse Maragement (Cayman) Limited (the *Company®™) is incorporated in the Cayman Islands
wilh limited Fability. The Company's principal activities are the creation of trusts and the administration
and management of assels in tusts. The Company's registered office s ¢/fo Maples Corporate
Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayran |slands.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
(@)  Statement of compliance

These financial stetements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporiing Standards (FRSs"), which collective term includes all apolicable individual
International  Flnanclal Reparling Standards, Interational Accaueting Stardards [1ASsT) and
Interpretations issued by International Accounting Standards Board (A58%. A swnmary of the
significant accourting pebzies adopled by the Compary is set cut below,

(b}  Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the finandal statements is fhe historical cost basis,

The preparation of fimancial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates ard assurmplions that affect the application of policies ard reparted amounts
of assets, habilities, income and axpenses. The estimates and assodated assumptions are based on
histarical experience and varous other factors thal are befesed to be ressonable under the
cireumnstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about caning values of
assets and liabilities that are nol readlly apparent from ofher sources. Actual results may differ from
these esfimates.

The estimates and underdying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis, Revisions to
sccounting estimates ase recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised i the revision
affects only that period, orin the pericd of the revision and future penods if the revision affects bath
cument and future periods,

(c)  Foreign currency

The Compary's funclional and presentation currency is United States Dollars ("USDCT. Foreign
curency fransactions during the year are translated into USD at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction cales. Monetary assefs and llabilibes denominated in foreign currencias are franslated
into LISD at the foreign exchange rales ruling at the end of the reporting period.  Exchange gains and
fosses are recognised in the profit or loss,

Mon-monetary assets and liabddies thal are measured in terms of historical cost in a2 foreign currency
are tramslated nto USD using the foreign exchange rates riling at the transaction dates, Mon-
monetary assets and labiites denominated in forelgn currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foceign exchange rales rufing at the dates the fair value was determined. Foreign
currency diffesences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss.
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Craokf Sideae Marmgeniant (Csenas) Limblad
Hobae lo Fianclal aladwrands for P peur andied 31 Doceveber 2000

2, Significant Accounting Policies {continued)
{d) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due from banks comprise cash at bank and on hand with banks, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readiy comertible info known ameunts of cash and whish are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three manths of maturity al acquisition,

(2] Other assets

Other assels are infflally recogrised at fair value and thereafler stated al amorised cost less
Expected Credit Less ("ECL") {refer to Mote 2(g)), except where the recehmbles are interast-free
boans made to related parties without any fieed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be

Enmaterial. In such cases, the recenables are stated at cost less impaiment for bad and doubbiul
debits,

n Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisians. are recognised for labiliies of uncertain iming or amount when the Company has a legal
or cansiructive obligation arising as a result of & past event, it is probable that an outliow of ecenomic
benefits will be requred to seftle the cbligation and a reliable esiimate cash be made. Whare the
time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation,

Where it iz not probable that an outflow of economic benafits will be required, or the amount cannod
be estimated relizbly. the obligation is disclosed as a cenfingent llability, unless the prabability of
cutflow of economic benefits |s remote. Possible obligations, whase existerce will anly be confirmed
by the ocoumence or pon-cocurence of one or more fufure events are also disdosed as confingent
liabilities unless the prebabdiy of outflow of econamic benefils is remota.

{g)  Impairment

The camying amount of the Company's assets is reviewed al the end of each reporling period fo
determine whether there is any obiective evidence of impairment. If any such objective evidence
exsts, the asset’s recoverable amount is estmated at the end ol each rmepording peried. An

impairment loss 15 recognised whenever the camying amount of an asset exceeds ils recoverabls
amount. Impairmant kesses are recogrised in the profit or lss,

Under [FRS 8, the impairment requirernents apply primarily to financlal assefs measured at amoriised
cost. The impairment requirements are based on 2 forward-looking expected credit loss model by
incarparating reasonable and supportable forecasts of future economic conditions avallable al the
reporting date. This requires considerable judgement over how changes in economic facters affect
ECLs, which is determined on a probabdity-weighted basis.

(h)  Revenug recognition
Prowided that it is probable {hat the economic benefils will flow to Ihe Campany and the revesue and
costs, if applicabie, can be measured relizbly, sendce fee income Is recognised in profit or loss when
the imvestiment management senvice is provicded.

)] Expenses

All expenses are recognised in peofit and loss on an accrsal basis,
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Criechf Sufssa Mansgenend (Cmyman] Limideg
Tl Jo Financinl sielaengnls for tha year anded 31 Deceniber 5000

2, Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
iy Related parties

For the purposes of these financlal statements, a party & considered o be related to the Company If:
{a) A person, or a cdose member of thal person®s family, is related lo the Company f that person:
{} has contrel o joint conlrol over the Compary;
(i} has significant influence over the Company; or

i) s a member of the key management persannel of the Company or the Company’s parent,

{b)  Anentdy is refated to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

@  The enlify and the Compary are members of the same group {which means that each
parert, subsidiany and fellow subsidiary is related fo the athers).

(i) One enlly is an assodate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate oo joint
venture of a8 member of a group of which the ofher entity is & member),

fili}y  Haoth entifies are joint ventures of the same third party,

{v} One entity is a joint venture of a third pary and the other entity iz an associate of the
third party.

{4 The enfity is a post-employment benefil plan for the benefit of employees of eifber the
Company or an entily refated to the Company.

(W) The ently is controlled or jaintly contralled by a person igertified in (2).

fvi] A persen identified in (a){) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
loy ranagement persantal of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expacted to
influence, or be influenced by, that persen in hair dealings with the endity.

(k)  Standards and Interpretations effective in tha current periad

The Comgany has applisd the following standards and amendmants for the first time for their amnual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2020:
* Definition of Material - amendments to 145 1 and 1AS 8
* Hevised Conceptual Framewoeds for Financia IRq]orlln_g
The amendmants listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the cumrent or fulure pedods,

3. Changes in Accounting Policies

The 1ASE has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs that are fisst effective for the curert

accounting peried of the Comparyy, MNone of these developments have had a malerial effect on how
the Campany's resulls and financlal position for the current o prior perieds have been prepared ot
presented in Male 2(k).

The Company has not applied ary new standard or inferpretation that is not ye! effectve for the
current aceounting peried (Note 15),
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L Sigase Minagement (Cinenen) Limied

Npdee o Fimancial stfemends 0 fe yos andod 3 Diocembar 2000

Met Interest Income

usD

ﬂat interest income

interest income on cash and due frombanks

Total interast income

2020 2019
16,025 34,534

All the abewve lerest incame on instiuments are at amorised cost,

Service Fee Incame

The principal activites of the Company are the creafion of trusts and the admwinistraton and

management of assets in frusts.

Revenus represents investment management fee income eamed from fellow subsidiary as follows:

Ush 2020 2019
Revenues

Serice fee income 220,000 15,000

Total revenues 220,000 215,000
General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

UsD 2020 2013
General administrative and other operating expenses 2

NSE SIOE. oo R S S S S TR, (34,668)
Bankcharges {1,182) L.
Audor renteialion. i @200 @119
Directors' ramunaration {107,083 (105,756)
Total general administrative and other operaling expenses (111,478) {143,734)

All of the sbove expenditures are payable to the Company's immeciate bolding company ard the
imrnediale ho'ding company setties such expenditures on bahaif of the Comparny,

Taxation

Thess are ne faxes on income o gaing in the Cayman lslards and the Company has received an
undertaking fram tha Gowernar in Coundl of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all local income,
profits and capial taxes yntl 10 Qclober 2089, Accordingly, e provision for income taes is ncluded

in these financial stalements.
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Cran Suézse Managamoat (Cayrman) Livsted
Meabad fo Financlad stidasanli tor Tha year endad 57 Decambar 2090

8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Eponsared pnconsalitiled struclured enfities

The Company considers fiself the sponser of a struchured enlity when aither s name appears in the
rame of the structured enfity or in products issued by it or there is a general expectation from the
market that the Company is assedated with the structured entity or the Compary was Invelved in the
design or sat gy of the: structured entity and has a form of involvement with the structured entiy.

The below unconschdated siructured entities are sponsored by the Company where a fixed annual
management fee of USD 5,000 (2018 USD 5000} s received but no interest is held by the
Comparty a5 at 31 Decembar 2020:

...............................................................................................................

Global REIT ncorme Alpha Fund (For Qualified Insfilutional Investors Only)

Ausiabian High Dividend Equly Twin Alpha Fund (For Quabfed Insiional investors Ony)
US REIT Premium Furd {For Qualified Institulional Imvestors Only)

US Preferred REIT income Fund (For Qualified Institutional Investors Only,
~Japan Equity Premium Fund (For Qua'ified Institutional Investoes Only)
MEMYAM LS REIT Inceme Fund (For Qualfied Instit

Daiwa Braziian Real Bond Fund (For Qualfied insifutional investors Oniy)

Nissay Japan Equily Active Fund (For Oualfied Instutional fovestors Oty "
AP Australia REIT Fund (For Qualified Instiulional investors Oy "
J-REIT and Real Estate Equity Fund (For Gualified Insflubional lnvestors Ony) """
gar;]m American High Dividend Equity Quattre Income Fund (For Qualiied Institutional Investars

...........................................................................

Japangse Government Bond 1730 Year Ladder Fund (For Oualfied Insituional invesiors G}

DU REITIU. o e et e
el e A e e R

o e A B PN eeieeteeeaesseeeesnemsatsssengesn et seearenenes
Global High Dividend Equity Premium Fund (For Quaiified Institutional investcrs Onhy)

T R e s S S
HOLT Eure Equity Premium Fund (For Cuaified Insfitutional investors Only) """
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Crac Sizase Managemeant [Cayrman) Linifad
Mobes o Financial siveiendy fior B pear ended 37 Decombar 2020

8. Unconsolidated Structured Entities {(continued)

.....................................................................................................

F-::rre-gn DE-I'IG'TII'IE.‘.Ed h‘-an .-"-.HL. Smar't Lew:rage Stmmgy FLnnd
56l Piciat ﬁ&a Hl fei:h "~l’e*1lu'_:=.: E!"."'d
MD Si'mrt Term Bond Fl.rn;i

.............................................................................................................

...........................................................................................................

= ’he {unds were temmated duanng 2000,

The Company has nel previded financial ar ether suppert fo consolidated struclred entities that it was
nat contractually required 1o provide.,

The Company does not cumenty have ihe intention fo provide financial or other support o
unconsalidated sinuctured entities that it is not contractually requised ta previde,

9. Cash and Due from Banks

Cash and cash equivalents comprisa;

UsoD 2020 2019
Cash and due from banks

Cash and due from banks 1,643,795 1,426,186
Total cash and due from banks 1,643,786 1,436,186

10. Other Assets and Other Liabilities

uso 2020 2019
Other assels

Interest and fees recaivable 30,570 217497
Total other assets 220,970 217.427
UsD 2020 2019
Other liabilities

Intarest and fees payable 217,833 131,329
Total other liabilities 217,933 131,329

12
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Crogit Suisse Mansgament (Cayman) Linifad
IMafas fo Fingocial stalements for fhe poar andad 31 Decamber 8020

11. Share Capital
(a)  Authorised and issued share capital

2020 2019
Me. of ush No. of ush
shares shares
Authorised:
Crrdinary shares of USD 1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid up:
Oirdinary shases 735000  TIR000 V35000  7ah000

The helders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dradends as declared from time to time and are
antitied 1o one vote per share at general meelings of the Company. AN erdinary shares rank egually
with regard to the Compary's residual assels.

(1)) Capital management

The Company's primary cbjectves when managing capital are to safeguand the Company's ability 1o
corntinue as a going concem so Lhal it can continue to provide retuns fo sharehclders, by pricing
services commensurately with the leve! of rsk and by securing access fo finance at a reasonable
cost, As the Company is part of 2 larger group, the Company's scurces of additional capital and
policies for dslriution of excess capital may also be affected by the group’s capital managerment
objectives. The Company defines “capital® as including ail components of equaty.

The Company's capital structure is regulary reviewed and managed with due regard to the capital
management practices of the group to which the Company belongs. Adjustments are made to the
capital structure in ight of changes In economic condifions affecting the Company o the grap, o
the extent that these do not conflict with the directors' fiduciary duties towards the Company.

The Company was not subject to externally imposed capital reguiresnts in the cument period,
12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to eredit, liquidity, intarest rate and foreign currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Compary's business. These risks are managed by the Campany's financial management policies and
practices desoribed below.

(@)  Credit risk

The Compary’s credit risk is primarily attributable ta amounts due from group companies and cash at
bank. Credit risk Is defined as risk that one party to & financial instroment will cause a financial foss to
araiher party by failing to discharge an obiigation. Management ragulady menitors its risk exposure to
ensure thal ds credil nsk is kept to a minimal level, The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the camyng amaount of each financial asset in the statemeni of finandial position after
ceducting any impairment allowance.
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Credil Swizse Maragemsaat {Cayman) Limiled
Motos fo Financial stadements for the year ended 31 Docornber 2020
12. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (continued)
(b) Liquicity risk

The Company's policy is lo regularly monitor s kguidity requirements fo satisly its contractual and
reasonably foresesable obligations as they fall due.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, all of the Company’s financial babilifies, which Includes all creditors
and aceruals, are an demand or undaled and are expected ta be setfled within three monihs,

i) Interest rate risk
The Campany is exposed o interest rale risk anly ta the extent that it eams bank interest on cash
and deposits. Al 31 December 2030 and 2019, 5 change in Interest rates would have no direct
material elfect on the carying value of the recognised assels or abilittes of the Compary.

{dy Faraign currency risk

The Cempany is exposed to foreign currancy rsk primarily through certain fransactans which give rise
to payables that are denominated in Hong Kong dollars (*HKD®).

As the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Company considers that the risk of movermenis in exchange
rates batwesn USD and HKD to be insignificant,

e} Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Company's finandial instruments caried al cost or amortised cost are
nol malerially different from their fair value as at 31 December 2020 and 2019,

13. Material Related Parly Transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disdosed elsewhers In the financial statements, the
Compary enterad into the following rmaterial relaled party transastions.

{a) Related party balance sheet transactions

31 December 2020 _ 31 December 2013
Parant Fallaw Tedtal Parnent Fallow Total
Group Group
UsD Companles Companies
Aasets
Cithwar agasts - FA0BED e BEa - 215,000 216,000
Total assols - 220,863 220,863 - 215,000 215,000
Linkilities and Equity
Oiwchelbes 2MaR s BWIR BB . R
Shae capilal 735,000 - 735,000 TaE, 000 - TG0
Total Enkilities and
sharcholders” equity 949,732 = 948,732 TEO,58T3 - T60,573
14
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Cradif Stisse Manragement (Cagrran) Limifod
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13.  Material Related Party Transactions (continued)

(b} Related party revenues and expenses

puiki] 2019
Parant Fallow Taotal Parent E:luw Total
Growp oA
usn Companies Companias
Revenues
e e O e 220000 290000 BOOD 218,000
Tetal revenues - 220,000 230,000 - 218,000 215,000

fc)  Remuneration of key management personnel

Remuneration of key menagemant personnal {USD) 2020 019
Short-leam amployes berafits 107,003 106,756
Totul Remuneeation of key manegemant personnel 107,093 108,756

14. Parent and Ultimate Holding Company

At 31 December 2020, the immediate parent of the Company s Credtt Sulsse (Hong Kong) Limited,
which is incorporated in Hong Kong and dhe uitimate confrolling party of the Campany s Credit
Suisse Group AG, which Is incorporated Tn Switzerland, Credit Sulsse Group AG produces financial
statements available for publiic use,

15. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2020

Centain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published thal are not mandatory for
31 December 2020 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Company. These
standards are rat expected o have a materiad impact on the entity in the current of Tuture reporling
perods and on foreseeable fulure ransactions.

16, Subsequent Events
There have been no matters or cecumstances that have adsen since the end of the financial peried,
which significartly aifected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the Company, the resulis of
those operations, of the state of affairs of the Comparny in future financial years.

17.  Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of direclors of the Company on 10
June D021,
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Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

1,502

Intertrust N.V.

(Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.)
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Trustee

KPMG

P.O. Box 493

SIX Cricket Square Grand Cayman KY1-1106 Cayman Islands
Telephone +1 345 949 4800

Fax +1 345 949 7164

Internet www.kpmg.ky

Independent Auditors' Report to the

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of AUD Short Term Bond Fund (the "Series Trust’), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at August 31, 2021, the statements of comprehensive
income, changes in equity, net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares,
changes in partners' capital and cash flows for the period then ended, and notes, comprising significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Series Trust as at August 31, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the period then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the "Auditors' Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements" section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in
accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Cayman Islands,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditors' Report to the (continued)

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevantto the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Series Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

December 20, 2021
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Independent auditor®s report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The financial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the “ Company” ) set
out on pages 3 to 15, which comprise:

a. the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020;

. the statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

© o O T

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“ IFRSs” ).

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ I1SAs” ).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the

International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“ IESBA Code” ), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.
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Independent auditor®s report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Company®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®™s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company®s internal control.
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Independent auditor®s report to the board of directors of
Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor®™s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

c. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors®™ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company-"s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, If such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 10 June 2021
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